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PREFACE

As we are going to say good-bye to the 20 century and meet the dawn of new millenium, it is worthwhile indeed to congratulate on
the publication of "Old Photos of Fuzhou".

The old photos in this collection serve as a historical witness to modern China between mid-and-late 19 century and the first half of 20
century by way of presenting a great many rich old photos which reflect the economic, political, millitary and cultural situations in Fuzhou
area during the same period. It must be noted that many historical events in modern China since mid-and-late 19 century had been closely
related with Fuzhou. Thus, the publication of "Old Photos of Fuzhou" will surely help us to understand Fuzhou and, further more, the
stomy history of modern and contemporary China in the past 160 years, and to experience more deeply the tremendous changes taken
place under the leadership of Chinese Communist Party and People’s Government in the past 50 years.

Fuzhou, one of China’s famous cities of historical and cultural importance with beautiful environment and scenery, is also called
Rongcheng (City of Banyan Trees). With crucial geographical situation and favorite natural environment, it became a county ever since the
Qin Dynasty when it served as capital of Minzhong Prefecture. The name had been changed for several times since the Han Dynasty. In the
16th year of Emperor Kaiyuan of the Tang Dynasty (725), it became Minzhou and was renamed as Fuzhou Prefecture. Thus the name of
Fuzhou has been known in history from the on. It has served as capital of Fujian Province ever since the Yuan Dynasty. The above-
mentioned historical changes show that Fuzhou has always served as political, economic, millitary and cultural centre for Fujian area
during its 2200-year long history. The cultural relics and ancient architectures which have survived until now prove to a great extent that
Fuzhou has a long history of culture, for intance, Ouye Pool where famous swords were manufactured by Ouye Zi in the Spring-Autumn
Periods, the Cliff Sculptures in the Ebony Hill, the Stone Sculptures in the Yushan Hill, the Cliff Sculptures in the Drum Hill, Hualin Temple,
Xichan Temple, Chongfu Temple, to name only a few. Among which Hualin Temple, one of the oldest wooden architectures in
Southeastern China, still keeps the features of temple style in the North Song Dynasty. This is extraordinarily rare and unique, and is
exceptionally commendable. "Enshi Lanya Wang Dezheng Bei" (Bestowed Steles to Wang Shengzhi’s Benevolent Rule), honored as one of
the most famous steles in China, provides a rare and important data for carrying out researches on Fujian’s millitary, politics, economy and
culture in the Five Dynasties. All the above-mentioned historical and cultural relics have been selected as Major Units for Cultural Relics in
the National, Provincial and Municipal Levels respectively, and have been well preserved under the concern of leaders in all the above-
mentioned levels, hence they have become tourist’s must.

With convenient land and maritime transport facilities, Fuzhou has got dynamic business evironment ever since the ancient times. As
a distributive center of produces in the Minjiang River valley and a strategic maritime communication hub, Fuzhou proved itself to be one
of most important ports, which have made great contributions in China’s maritime foreign trade and cultural exchanges, in its carly
historical development.

Fuzhou is not only a famous city with long history of culture, but also a glorious city with patriotic tradition. The shameful Opium War
launched by British colonists 160 years ago forced the Qing government to sign the humiliating "Sino-British Treaty of Nanjing", in which
Fuzhou was stipulated as one of the five open ports (Guangzhou, Fuzhou, Xiamen, Ningbo, and Shanghai) for trade. From then on,
Fuzhou people have never ceased their struggle of opposing aggression and oppression.

There are in Fuzhou not only churches, racecourses and consulates set up by colonists, which became evidence in proof of their
aggression, but also Mawei Shipyard and Mawei Shipyard Academy, which showed the consciousness of Chinese nation and marked the
earliest effort of a number of high-intelligent and open-minded bureaucrats to build navy in order to strengthen national power and
became the cradle for modern Chinese Navy. Many national heroes and patriots grew up in Fuzhou, a place famous for its beautiful

scenery and rich resources, among them there are Lin Zexu, a great politician and millitary strategist who opposed British aggression, Yan
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Fu, a famous enlightenment thinker, translator and educator, Lin Xu, a hero who participated in the 1898 Hundred Days’ Reform, Lin
Juemin, a revolutionery who died heroically in Guangzhou Uprising just before the 1911 Revolution, and Lin Xianggiang, a leader who
organised General Strike of Beijing-Hankou Railway and sacrificed himself at the hands of warlords, to name only a few. They have been,
and will be, highly appreciated and appraised by the Chinese people forever, generations after generations, which is not only the glory of
Fuzhou, but also the glory of Chinese nation.

Reflecting on the past in the light of the present, all sorts of feelings well up in my mind that there have been great shift and changes
of the world in the course of time. The relics of old Fuzhou are hard to find since they have been replaced by today’s high-rise buildings
one after another. In the past few years, there have been many photo collections concerning modern urban architecture, folk customs and
ways of life being published or under edition and publication, which shows people’s new demand for spiritual foods after their demand
for material provision has been met and improved to a higher extent. As carriers of urban cultural change, the old architectures , urban folk
customs and ways of life arouse most the sympathetic response and passions in the hearts of people at present. In the meanwhile, we can
not help but feel upset about the uninterrupted disappearance of modern architectures one after another in our cities following the shade
of bulldozer. Owing to much endeavors from the cutural relics departments, many modern architectures have survived until now. There
are still much more architectures which can not but be found only in old photos or in old photo collections. Can we leave some more
witnesses to urban development for ourselves or for our future generations? I don't think it is a big problem. What is crucial is whether you
have got a sense in this area. What we learn from history is: it is better to
protect and preserve now than to regret later.

Comrade Zeng Yidan, a famous cultural historian in Fuzhou,
gathered painstakingly a lot of highly treasurable old photos in his spare
time when he was in charge of Fuzhou Municipal Cultural Relics Bureau
and selected more than 200 photos for publishing "Old Photos of
Fuzhou", which will enable us to recall the past in the light of present to
understand that today is hard-won and to be more confident that
Fuzhou’s tomorrow will become better! Comrade Zeng Yidan used to be
my colleague for many years. He is an able and intelligent expert in
Chinese Literature and History. After he completed his manuscripts, he
asked me to write the Preface for his book. Although I have been to
Fuzhou, it was only a brief look of the highlight spots. Now that I can not
refuse his request to write down the Preface, any criticism and
corrections from experts and old photo collectors will be highly

appreciated.

Zhang Wenbing

On December 30, 1999
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Photo 1. The Ebony Pagoda

The Ebony Pagoda was located in the east of Linci
Platform, Wushan Hill (Ebony Hill). It was originally
built in the 15th year of Emperor Zhenyuan of the Tang
Dynasty (799) by Liu Mian, the Minister of Observation
of the Tang Dynasty, in the name of celebrating Emperor
Dezhong's Birthday. The pagoda was initially called
"Dustless Clean and Bright Pagoda". It was damaged soon
afterwards. In the 2nd year of Emperor Tianfu of the Five
Dynasties (937), it was rebuilt by Wang Yanxi with
granites and renamed as "Manificient, Majestic and
Indestrutable Pagoda". It was an octogonal seven-storey
pagoda of 35 meters height. It is rarely seen nationwide
that the stone pagoda built in the Five Dynasties has been

well preserved until now.




I. FUZHOU CITY BEFORE 20 CENTURY & ITS STREETS IN 1920-30’S

The city of Fuzhou dates back 2200 years ago when it was called the city of Yecheng, the capital of Minyue Kingdom, in the 5th year
of Emperor Gaozu of the Han Dynasty. It was located northeast of modern Fuzhou and built around the areas of the Yeshan Hill, a branch
range of Pingshan Hill, and Ouye Pool. According to "Wenxian Tongkao" (Historical and Textual Researches on Documentary Records),
"King of Minyue chose Yecheng as its capital and occupied the Jiangjun Hill and Ouye Pool as its scenic spots." It is difficult to find the
ruins of Yecheng, but Ouye Pool still survives. In the 3rd year of Emperor Taikang of the Jing Dynasty, Govenor Yang Gao disliked the
narrowness of Ouye Pool and moved and built new city around Xiaobu, an area in the right south of Pingshan Hill, which was called as
Zicheng in history.

The city owes its present stature to Wang Shenzhi, the first king of Min Kingdom, who built his capital in late Tang Dynasty and Five
Dynasties.

A collection of photos taken a hundred years ago remind us of the patterns and features of the old city.

North Gate Tower on top of the Pingshan Hill was originally built in the 4th year of Emperor Hongwu of the Ming Dynasty (in 1371).
Governor Wang Gong, Emperor’s son-in-law, built the tower over the hill with stones only, which was unique in the whole country. The
model tower on top of the Pingshan Hill, served as a good example for all the other gate towers, was also called as Zhenhai Tower (Sea-
Controlling Tower) and was rebuilt in the 60th year of Emperor Qiangrong of the Qing Dynasty, with a height of about 20 meters, as a
navigation mark for ancient marine ships to enter the city at night.

South Gate Tower was constructed on the ruins of Ningyue Gate , the South Gate Tower of Jiacheng City built by Wang Shenzhi, King
of Min Kindom in the Five Dynasties. It looked most majestic and magnificent, with a gable and hip roof, double eaves and three layers.
The Flank Towers on both sides of the Urn Walls looked magnificent too, with Shrine of General Zhou Cang, a famous general in the
Three Kindoms, on the upper floor.

There were many residential houses within the city areas beginning from the South Gate Tower. The wind-and-fire resistance walls of
the residential houses formed thousands of curves falling and rising like waves of tides, giving the ancient seaside city a nice rythme.

The ancient city walls in the Ming and Qing Dynasties emcompassed the three hills of Wushan Hill (Ebony Hill), Yushan Hill and
Pingshan Hill. The patterns and features of ancient Fuzhou City could be summed up in "three hills, two pagodas and one street". As
viewed from Linxiao Plateform (Cloud-reaching Platform) on top of Wushan Hill, all the three hills except Pingshan Hill and the two
pagodas of Wuta (the Ebony Pagoda) and Baita (the White Pagoda) and the South Gate Tower were in the focus. The central axis of the
city runs straightly from the Zhenhai Tower (Sea-controlling Tower) to the South Gate Tower. The central axis became a long street passing
through the South Gate Tower. This photo reflects the patterns and features of the old city to a great extent.

This main street of central axis, now called "Bayiqgi Road" (August 17 Road), was most prosperious in 1920-30’s. Its north section was
originally called as Gulougian (In front of Drum Tower) and Nanjie (South Street) and was lined with 2-3-storey buildings with bricks and
cement structure. There were silk fabrics stores, cloth shops, clocks and watches stores, glasses stores, banks, pawnshops, bookstores,
theatres, herbal medicine and drug stores, restaurants, teahouses, laundries, joss sticks and candles shops and photo studios etc., etc.. The
names of the stores were mostly written on cloth flags which were hanged out in front of the stores while those of herbal medicine shops
were carved on wooden boards. There were electric posts on both sides of the street. Public buses commenced to run through the city in
1920’s. The south section of the street was called Zhongtin Street (Middle Pavillion Street) and Dagiaotou (Head of Great Bridge). There

was a police post at the crossroad with people bustling about in the street. There were also many rickshaws in the street.
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Photo 2. The White Pagoda

The White Pagoda was originally built in the

Ist year of Emperor Tianyou of the Tang Dynasty
(904), with a height of 41 meters. It was located
at the back of Fayu Hall inside the Longevity
Temple (White Pagoda Temple). The pagoda was
built with bricks and painted with white mortar,
and hence its name. According to the records by
Huang Tao, a shining pearl was found when
laying the foundation, so it was formally named
as the Shining Pagoda. It was damaged by
lightning in the period of Jiajing Reign of the
Ming Dynasty, and rebuilt in 1548, which was
lower than the original. After liberation, the stone
railing slabs for the foundation of the original
wooden pagoda were found when it was under
reconstruction. These slabs have been erected

around the foundation as they were. There are
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many sculptures, such as aquatic treasures, lions
playing with balls, overseas merchants riding on
camels etc., in the slabs. The sculptures are of
superb and perfect craftsmanship and reflect Wang
Shenzhi's open policy of "attracting overseas

merchants to trade with foreign countries".
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Photo 3. Ouye Pool

This photo was taken by Ouyang Zhang, a
famous photographer, in Autumn 1948. There
was a legend that Yun Chang, King of Yue
Kingdom, used to employ Ouye Zi to make
swords in the pool here, and hence the name.
Many hundred years later, Wuzu also made
swords here. According to "Min Zhong Shu
Wen" (Selected Notes in Central Fujian): "Ouye
Pool is located in the Yeshan Hill. It is the place

where King of Min made his famous swords. The

Sword Pool Temple was set up in the period of

Emperor Yuanhe of the Tang Dynasty. When
there was a storm, there were great waves in the
pool, the monks used to find some copper swords
and copper rings here and sent them to the arms

depot".
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Photo 5. Seven-Star Wells in Front of the
Zhenhai Tower

There were 7 stone vats shaped as tops in
the front side of the Zhenhai Tower. The 7 vats
represent the seven stars in the Big Dipper. The
seven stars were lined in the form of dipper to
stand for the extinction of fire with water so as to

keep the whole city away from fire disaster.
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Photo 4. Zhenhai Tower (Sea-Controlling

Tower)
There were three Zhenhai Towers in China.
One was at the foot of Wushan Hill in Hangzhou,
one was on top of the Yuexiu Hill in the north of
Guangzhou. The Zhenhai Tower in Fuzhou
situated imposingly on top of the Pingshan Hill.
As the North Gate Tower of ancient Fuzhou, it
.- o was originally built in the 4th year of Emperor
Hongwu of the Ming Dynasty (1371), when Governor Wang Gong, Emperor's son-in-law, built the
tower over the hill. The model tower on top of the Pingshan Hill, served as a good example for all other
gate towers, was also called as  Zhenhai Tower and was rebuilt in 60th year of Emperor Qiangrong of
the Qing Dynasty, with a height of about 20 meters. There was a Zhengwu Shrine upstairs. Zhengwu is
also called as Xuanwu, the God of the North. In Chinese taditional culture, there are four animals
standing for the four directions, namely Ebony Dragon for the East, White Tiger for the West, Red
Peacock (Phonix) for the South and Xuanwu (Smart Tortoise) for the North. In 1943, Lin Sheng, former
President of the Republic of China and pioneering revolutionary in the 1911 Revolution, died in a traffic
accident in Chongging. The tower was renewed in memory of him and renamed as "Lin Sheng Memorial

Hall". What a pity it was that the Tower was dismantled during the Cultural Revolution.
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Photo 6. The South Gate Tower and nearby Residential Houses

This photo was taken from the west to the east, with Gaoye Temple

nearby, the profiles of Yushan Hill and Real Dragon Monastery and

Superscholar Hall in the distance. There were Flank Towers on both sides of

the Gate Tower, which resulted in Urn Wall of Double Passes as a whole.
Row upon row of residential houses could be seen inside the walls,
residents coming and going from the gates of the Flank Towers. There was a
long wall called Western City Wall in the west of the South Gate Tower.
Under the wall, there was, and is still now, a street called Wallside Street.
According to "Rong Cheng Kaogu Lue" (A Summary of Archaeological
Studies in Fuzhou City): "The South Gate Tower was damaged by disaster,

and rebuilt in the periods of Emperor Daoguang of the Qing Dynasty.
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Photo 7. The South Gate Tower with the Ebony Pagoda in the
Background

There were the Ebony Hill and the Ebony Pagoda in the
background in the Northwestern direction of the South Gate Tower,
which was, as a whole, the Urn Wall of Double Passes. The wall
inside was constructed with stones. According to records, the seams
of the stones were curved as waves to stand for controlling the li fire

(Ii, one of the Eight Diagrams, shown as -~ symbolizing fire) to keep

the city intact from fire.

B8 fugety im0 A AP RO
Photo 8. City Wall Surrounding the Ebony Hill
There were two castles on both the left and right side of the

city wall.
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Photo 9. The Ebony Hill, the
Yushan Hill and the Ebony Pagoda,
the White Pagoda

This photo was taken from the

ol

Cloud-Reaching Plateform on top of
the Ebony Hill. The patterns and
features of ancient Fuzhou City
could be summed up in "three hills,
two pagodas and one street”. As
viewed from the Cloud-reaching Platform on top of Wushan Hill, all the three hills (except Pingshan Hill) and the two pagodas of Wuta (the Ebony Pagoda) and
Baita (the White Pagoda) and South Gate Tower, the Confucian Temple were in the focus. The two pagodas standing on both sides of the South Gate Tower were
also called as horns of dragon in Fuzhou in ancient times. According to "Book of Mindu (Capital of Fujian)"/Vol.9/Item "West Dragon Beard River":" There was a
popular saying that the Drum Tower was the head of Dragon, the two gates (the site of Pearl Gate is now in front of the Drum Tower, there are two city gates)being

nose, the White Pagoda in Jiuxiang Hill (Yushan HIIl) and the Ebony Pagoda in the Ebony Hill being horns, the beards being the East River and the West River."
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Photo 10. Scenic Spots in
the South of the City

Great changes had taken
place in Fuzhou since the late
Qing Dynasty, with the city proper
expanding to the south as the
Minjian River moving towards the
south. Due to the deposits of
sands, the islets such as Banzhou,
Cangxiazhou, Yizhou, Lengyan-
zhou and Yamuzhou evolved into
an integrated land finally. After the
opening of the Five Treaty
Trading Ports, many foreign
merchants and prists poured into
Cangshan. Thus, Taijiang,
Zhongzhou and Cangshan were
integrated by the Longevity
Bridge and the Jiangnan Bridge
and became a prosperous
commercial area.
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Photo 11. The Longevity Bridge

(the Great Bridge)

K

This photo was taken a hundred

years ago. It was a floating bridge at first,

which was built in the periods of

Emperor Yuanyou of the Song Dynasty
(1086-1094). In the 7th year of Emperor
Dade of the Yuan Dynasty (1303), Wang
Fazhu, Buddist friar from the Longevity
Temple, took orders from the Emperor to
raise funds to rebuild the bridge with

stones. There were 28 piers and 29

openings in the bridge. On both sides of

the bridge, there were stone railings. In
the periods of Emperor Wangli of the
Ming Dynasty, Governor Pang
Shangpeng rebuilt the stone railings.
There were many sculptures of treasured

birds, scarce animals and beautiful

st

flowers in the railings. There were also
sculptures of stone lions in the columns.
In 1930, the government employed
Japanese engineers to expand the bridge,
the stone railings were substituted by
cement railings. The stone railings were

moved to the Ebony Hill Library.
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Photo 12. Gulou Street

This photo was taken in
1920's. Gulou Street was the
north section of the central axis
running through the city (the
North Section of Bayiqi Road
now). Public buses invented not
long ago were running in the
street. With only 4 buses in the
whole city, there were more

rickshaws running in the street.
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Photo 14. Crossroads at Zhongting
Street (Head of Great Bridge)

This photo was taken in early

x|

1930's. Zhongting Street situated in the
south section of the central axis street
(the South Section of Bayiqi Road now),
the most prosperious commercial area in
1930's. The east side in the photo was
China National Products Co.. There
were also famous stores such as
"Centenary Department Stores", "Sishen

Drug Stores" in this area.
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Photo 13. South Street

This photo was also taken in
1920's. South Street was (and still is) the
street following the Gulou Street. It was
located also in the north section of the
central axis. Like that in Gulou Street,
boards and cloth flags with brands and
descriptions of business lines were
hanged out in front of the stores and

shops to attract customers.
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Photo 15. Marine Ship (Shangdong Ship)

This photo was taken a hundred years ago.
This 3-mast ship made in Fuzhou was 52M long
and 9.5M wide. Since it sailed between Fuzhou,
Shangdong and Tianjing all the year round, hence

the name.
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Il. THE MINJIANG RIVER-RIVER OF MOTHER

The beautiful Minjiang River is the river of mother breeding Fuzhou City. According to "Biography of Yan Zhu" in "History of the Han
Dynasty": "Min (Fujian) people are used to fighting on water and good at sailing ships". It is thus clear that Fuzhou people have been
famous for fighting on water and navigation since the ancient times. There were many gorges, rocks, shoals, and rapids in the Minjiang
River in 1940’s when boat trackers pulled the boats on the rugged paths along the Minjiang River.

The Minjiang River boasts itself of plentiful and high quality water, with rich aquatic resources such as baidao fish and mandarin fish.
When the river flows past Fuzhou, especially, Hongtan town, there is a special fish called tiesha fish (sand-sticking fish - a kind of
freshwater flounder). There are specialties such as one-legged razor clams and silver fish in Wulong River (downstream of Minjiang River).
China sturgeon is a specialty in the Changjiang River, but it often visits the Minjiang River because of its requirements on high quality
water.

In the upstreams of Minjiang River, there are mountains and hills with dense forest and woods which are called "green gold
storehouse". It is one of major forests in China. Thus, the downstream Fuzhou with seaports has become one of the timber distributing
centres nationwide eversince the opening of the five treaty ports for trade.

There are also many tea farms on the hills and mountains of the catchment areas of the Minjiang River. Fujian is a major tea-
producing province. We can see here some photos of tea farms, taken a hundred years ago, in Beiling, Fuzhou. Since 1840’s, Fuzhou has
also become one of the three major tea markets in China. Fuzhou Chamber of Commerce consisted mainly of Tea Group and Timber
Group. Among the Tea Group, there were business groups specializing in providing export services for foreign trading firms, with some
extent of comprador. Some tea firms and tea shops were run by foreigners themselves. For instance, Taiji Teashop was run by people from
Ryukyu (Ryukyu was occupied by Japan in the 5th year of Emperor Guangxu and renamed as Okinawa) and closed only after the break up
of Anti-Japanese War. Fuzhou was also the distributing center for dried bamboo shoots, xianggu mushrooms and paper.

The Minjiang River has played an important role in Fuzhou’s trading with foreign countries ever since the ancient times. According to
"The Travels of Marco Polo", there used to be many Indian merchant ships in the Minjiang River in Fuzhou in the Yuan Dynasty. In the
Ming Dynasty, Fuzhou was the only trading port approved by the central government to carry out feng (grants) and gong (tributes) trade
between ancient Ryukyu Kingdom and our country. Many other countries came to trade with China through Ryukyu. A short canal, called
Xingan River (New Port River), was excavated between Rouyuan Post (Ryukyu Hotel), Tribute Warehouse (where goods from foreign
countries were stored) and the Minjiang River for the convenience of Ryukyu ships. A bridge called Hekou Longevity Bridge was built
across the New Port River near the gate of Ryukyu Hotel. The area around Ryukyu Hotel had developed into a prosperious foreign trade
zone since the Ming and Qing Dynasties.

As a foreign trade port in Fuzhou, Mawei, especially the Luoxin Hill, was surrounded by the Minjiang River, as shown in the photo
taken a hundred years ago. The hill was also called as Moxin Hill (Millstone Hill) and the Luoxin Pagoda on the hill was also called as
Moxin Pagoda. The pagoda was built by Liu Qiniang in the Song Dynasty. According to "Book of Mindu (capital of Fujian)"/Vol.12, Liu
Qiniang was the daughter of Li family in Guangdong Province. She was so beautiful that a richman in the neighbourhood plotted to take
her away by force. He traped and sent her husband into prison and her husband finally died in Minnan (south Fujian). Liu Qiniang sold all
her property and came to Fujian to build pagoda in praying for her husband’s good fortune in the nether world. Later the pagoda was
brought down by typhoon and was rebuilt in the periods of Emperor Tiangi of the Ming Dynasty on the original site. The pagoda was
heavily damaged in Sino-French Battle in the Majiang River in 1884 and was repaired in 1964. The pagoda has served as the navigation
mark for marine ships coming into the port and has been shown as "China Tower" in foreign navigation charts.

The Minjiang River is beautiful and attractive with its many scenic spots and historical relics. For instance, Yuanshan Fort in the river,

Jinshan Temple in Hongtan Town and Jingang Legs stretching into the river near Hangcheng Town, are the must places to be visited.




